# **ARMBROK OJSC**

# **Financial statements**

For the year ended 31 December 2023 together with independent auditor's report

ARMBROK OJSC Financial statements

# **Contents**

# Independent auditor's report

### **Financial statements**

	tement of financial positiontement of financial position	
	tement of changes in equity	
	tement of cash flows	
State	terrient of Casif Hows	
Note	tes to the financial statements	
1.	Reporting entity	5
2.	Basis of preparation	
3.	Accounting policies	
4.	Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions	
5.	Net Interest Income	
6.	Fee and Commission Income and Expense	12
7.	Net Trading Gain	
8.	Staff Costs	13
9.	Administrative Expenses	13
10.	Income tax	
11.	Cash and Cash equivalents	
12.	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	
13.	Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	16
14.		
15.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
16.		
17.		
18.	1 9	
19.		
20.		
21.		
22.	Trade and Other Payables	
23.	<del>U</del>	
24.		
25.	Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities	
26.	Capital management	
27. 28	Contingencies	
· /×	Related parties	.)(



Ernst & Young CJSC Vazgen Sargsyan St., 2 Building, Yerevan, 0010 Armenia, Kamar Business Center Tel: +374 60 50 7777 www.ev.com/am «Էրնսթ ընդ Յանգ» ՓԲԸ ՀՀ, ք. Երևան, 0010, Վազգեն Սարգսյան փող., 2 շենք «Կամար» Բիզնես Կենտրոն Հեռ.՝ +374 60 50 7777

## Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholders of ARMBROK OJSC

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the financial statements of ARMBROK OJSC (the "Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

### Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' (IESBA) International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Republic of Armenia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.



### Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ▶ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;
- ► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
- ► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young CJSC Yerevan, Armenia

**General Director** 

Eric Hayrapetyan

Partner (Assurance)

30 April 2024

Dmytro lurgelevych

# Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income For the year ended 31 December 2023

'000 AMD	Note	2023	2022
Interest revenue calculated using effective interest rate	5	2,006,438	1,258,388
Interest expense	5	(1,807,408)	(1,159,338)
Net interest income		199,030	99,050
Fee and commission income	6	12,602,984	3,959,508
Fee and commission expense	6	(1,685,854)	(992,278)
Net fee and commission income		10,917,130	2,967,230
Net trading gain	7	6,878,758	7,598,612
Net loss from sale of financial assets at FVTOCI		(21,887)	(583,369)
Net gain from foreign currency revaluation	*	611,921	551,994
Other income		40,539	8,708
Staff costs	8	(10,879,222)	(7,492,903)
Administrative expenses	9	(503,405)	(211,152)
Share of profits of associate	14	66,329	4,729
Share of results of joint venture	14	(6,474)	40.000
Credit loss (expense)/reversal	23	(162,923)	13,632
Profit before income tax		7,139,796	2,956,531
Income tax expense	10	(1,143,904)	(419,294)
Profit for the year		5,995,892	2,537,237
Other comprehensive loss			(*
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:			
Fair value gain/(loss) on investments measured at FVTOCI and			
changes in allowance for expected credit losses		539,722	(684,746)
Less: Cumulative loss on investments reclassified to profit or loss			
upon sale		21,887	583,369
Income tax effects of the movement in other comprehensive			
income		(93,120)	18,293
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax		468,489	(83,084)
Total comprehensive income for the year		6,464,381	2,454,153

These financial statements were approved and signed on 30 April 2024 by:

Aram Kayfajyan Chief Executive Officer Lida Tadeosyan Chief Accountant

# Statement of financial position

# As of 31 December 2023

Assets Cash and cash equivalents Term deposits Amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Held by the Company - Pledged under repurchase agreements - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI - Held by the Company - Pledged under repurchase agreements - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets Right-of-use assets	11	6,569,219 - -	4,606,794 6,189
Term deposits Amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Held by the Company - Pledged under repurchase agreements - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI -Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets		6,569,219 - -	6,189
Amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Held by the Company - Pledged under repurchase agreements - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI -Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	12	=	
Amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Held by the Company - Pledged under repurchase agreements - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI -Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	12	-	
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  - Held by the Company  - Pledged under repurchase agreements  - Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI  -Held by the Company  -Pledged under repurchase agreements  -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	12		995,337
<ul> <li>- Held by the Company</li> <li>- Pledged under repurchase agreements</li> <li>- Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions</li> <li>Financial assets at fair value through OCI</li> <li>-Held by the Company</li> <li>-Pledged under repurchase agreements</li> <li>-Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions</li> <li>Investment in associate</li> <li>Investment in joint venture</li> <li>Property, equipment and intangible assets</li> </ul>	12		N (NOTE NOTE NOTE NOTE NOTE NOTE NOTE NOTE
<ul> <li>Pledged under repurchase agreements</li> <li>Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions</li> <li>Financial assets at fair value through OCI</li> <li>Held by the Company</li> <li>Pledged under repurchase agreements</li> <li>Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions</li> <li>Investment in associate</li> <li>Investment in joint venture</li> <li>Property, equipment and intangible assets</li> </ul>		6,549,058	2,057,159
- Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Financial assets at fair value through OCI -Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	12	1,504,482	563,002
Financial assets at fair value through OCI -Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	12	1,903,586	932,786
-Held by the Company -Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets			· ·
-Pledged under repurchase agreements -Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	13	2,802,376	1,502
-Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	13	23,882,741	8,157,158
Investment in associate Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	13	514,833	-
Investment in joint venture Property, equipment and intangible assets	14	210,617	144,288
Property, equipment and intangible assets	14	16,359	22,833
	15	245,025	205,023
	16	142,031	162,321
Deferred tax assets	10		51,029
Other assets	17	688,608	499,967
Total assets		45,028,935	18,405,388
Eit			
Equity Share capital	18	267,150	267,150
The state of the s	10	208,011	208,011
Share premium Statutory general reserve		79,670	79,670
Financial assets at fair value through OCI reserve		415,956	(52,533)
With the state of		9,792,139	4,063,397
Retained earnings Total equity		10,762,926	4,565,695
PL 12 KAOMONANIA			
Liabilities Amounts payable under repurchase agreements	19	23,854,597	8,309,880
Amounts due to financial institutions and individuals	20	3,132,345	887,418
Liabilities for unsettled transactions	21	3,930,608	400,466
Current income tax liabilities	21	914,914	471,717
Lease liabilities	16	132,155	145,750
	22	2,265,301	3,596,785
Trade and other payables	22	27,677	27,677
Provisions Deferred tax liabilities	10	8,412	27,077
	.0	34,266,009	13,839,693
Total liabilities		01,200,000	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Total equity and liabilities		45,028,935	18,405,388

These financial statements were approved and signed on 30 April 2024 by:

Aram Kayfajyan Chief Executive Officer Lida Tadeosyan Chief Accountant ARMBROK OJSC Financial statements

### Statement of changes in equity

# For the year ended 31 December 2023

'000 AMD	Share capital	Share premium	Statutory general reserve	Financial assets at fair value through OCI reserve	Retained earnings	Total
As of 1 January 2022	267,150	208,011	79,670	30,551	1,633,020	2,218,402
Profit for the year Other comprehensive loss for the year Net change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through OCI and changes in	-	-	-	-	2,537,237	2,537,237
allowance for expected credit losses, net of tax				(83,084)		(83,084)
Total comprehensive income for the year				(83,084)	2,537,237	2,454,153
Dividends declared (Note 18)					(106,860)	(106,860)
As of 31 December 2022	267,150	208,011	79,670	(52,533)	4,063,397	4,565,695
Profit for the year Other comprehensive income for the year Net change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through OCI and changes in	-	-	-	-	5,995,892	5,995,892
allowance for expected credit losses, net of tax				468,489		468,489
Total comprehensive income for the year				468,489	5,995,892	6,464,381
Dividends declared (Note 18)					(267,150)	(267,150)
As of 31 December 2023	267,150	208,011	79,670	415,956	9,792,139	10,762,926

ARMBROK OJSC Financial statements

### Statement of cash flows

# For the year ended 31 December 2023

'000 AMD	Note	2023	2022
Operating activities			
Interest received		1,683,516	1,476,750
Interest paid		(1,759,953)	(1,139,380)
Fee and commissions received		12,424,796	3,675,800
Fee and commissions paid		(1,675,423)	(796,575)
Net gain (loss) from foreign currency purchase or sales transactions		300,089	(1,594,537)
Other operating income		40,539	8,709
Salary and other related payments		(12,283,615)	(4,195,273)
Other operating expenses paid		(434,200)	(165,373)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes	•	(1,704,251)	(2,729,879)
Working capital changes in:			
Deposits		6,189	90,831
Reverse repurchase agreements		995,604	(995,604)
Investments in securities		(17,461,330)	10,040,251
Other assets		(87,509)	35,408
Amounts due to financial institutions and individuals		1,950,428	751,213
Repurchase agreements		15,458,779	(2,283,479)
Liabilities for unsettled transactions		3,627,306	400,466
Trade and other payables	_	89,999	(321,718)
Operating cash flows before income tax paid		2,875,215	4,987,489
Income tax paid		(761,892)	(6,230)
Net cash flows from operating activities	•	2,113,323	4,981,259
Investing activities			
Acquisition of property and equipment and intangible assets		(156,302)	(24,262)
Net cash flows used in investing activities		(156,302)	(24,262)
Financing activities			
Repayment of lease liabilities	16	(34,000)	(34,000)
Dividends paid	18	(267,150)	(106,860)
Net cash flows used in financing activities	10	(301,150)	(140,860)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	•	1,655,871	4,816,137
Net foreign exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents		304,809	(239,289)
Allowance for impairment losses		1,745	(4,204)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January		4,606,794	34,150
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December	11	6,569,219	4,606,794

### 1. Reporting entity

### (a) Organisation and operations

"Armbrok" OJSC (the Company), is an investment company regulated by the legislation of RA. The Company was registered on 4 November 2008 by the Central Bank of Armenia under license number 10. "Armbrok" OJSC is an Armenian open joint stock company as defined in the Civil Code of the Republic of Armenia. Following the rebranding by the Company "Armbrok" OJSC replaced previously used "Armenbrok" OJSC.

The Company's major shareholder is Aram Kayfajyan, who holds 42.32% of total shares issued. The Company does not have ultimate controlling party.

The Company carries out its activities in the securities and foreign currency markets, in particular:

- Securities placements;
- Trust management of securities;
- Securities brokerage and dealing;
- Registrar and depository services;
- Consultations on securities market;
- Non-cash foreign currency trading operations.

The Company's registered office is 39 Hanrapetutyan street, 0010, Yerevan, Republic of Armenia.

### (b) Armenian business environment

The Company's operations are primarily located in the Republic of Armenia. Consequently, the Company is exposed to the economic and financial markets of Armenia which display characteristics of an emerging market. The legal, tax, regulatory frameworks and overall business practices and environment continue developing and improving. However still varying interpretations and frequent changes of legislation together with other legal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities operating in Armenia. Additionally, the breakout of armed conflict in Nagorno-Karabakh in September 2020 followed by cease-fire arrangement over disputed Nagorno-Karabakh territories, later escalation of the conflict in the territory of the Republic of Armenia has increased uncertainty in the business environment.

As a result of the war in Ukraine many leading countries and economic unions have announced severe economic sanctions against Russia and Belarus, including Russian banks, other entities and individuals. Since the start of the war, there has been a significant volatility of the Russian ruble against foreign currencies, as well as significant loss of value on the securities markets in Russia and of Russian companies listed in overseas markets. As a result of the above, there have been an influx of non-residents and relocation of many businesses (especially from Russia) to Armenia, which have played a vital role in stimulating economic growth of the country in general, and activation of the investment and asset management activities in particular. As the war is still waging, it is impossible to reliably assess the final impact this may have on the Company's business as there is uncertainty over the magnitude of the impact on the economy in general.

The financial statements reflect management's assessment of the impact of Armenian business environment on the operations and the financial position of the Company. The future business environment may differ from management's assessment.

### 2. Basis of preparation

### (a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

#### (b) Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of the Republic of Armenia is the Armenian Dram ("AMD"), which is the Company's functional currency and the currency in which these financial statements are presented. These financial statements are presented in thousands of Armenian Dram ("AMD"), and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

### 2. Basis of preparation (continued)

### (c) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis with the exception of certain financial instruments that are stated at fair value.

### 3. Accounting policies

In accordance with the amendments to IFRSs Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 that became effective on 1 January 2023 as disclosed in Note 3 (j) below, the Company revised its disclosure of accounting policies. The revised material accounting policy information focuses on how the Company has applied the requirements of the IFRSs to its own circumstances and includes largely items where the Company chose an accounting policy from one or more options permitted by IFRSs, items subject to significant judgments or estimates, and excludes information that only duplicates or summarizes the requirements of IFRSs, as well as accounting policies about immaterial matters.

#### (a) Fair value measurement

The Company measures investment securities at fair value at each balance sheet date.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

#### (b) Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange defined by the Central Bank of Armenia prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates defined by the Central Bank of Armenia prevailing on the reporting date:

	31 December 2023 3	31 December 2022
AMD / 1 US dollar	404.79	393.57
AMD / 1 Euro	447.9	420.06
AMD / 1 RUB	4.5	5.59

Exchange differences arising on the settlement and retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the period under the line "Net gain/(loss) from foreign currency revaluation".

### (c) Financial Instruments

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through OCI, and fair value through PL.

The Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes other financial assets and cash and cash equivalents.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. Interest income is included in the 'interest revenue calculated using effective interest rate ' line item.

### 3. Accounting policies (continued)

### (c) Financial Instruments (continued)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

The government bonds held by the Company are usually classified as at FVTOCI. The RA government bonds are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these government bonds as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or losses, and interest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these government bonds had been measured at amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these government bonds are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When these government bonds are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in 'Net gain/(loss) from sale of financial assets at FVTOCI' line item.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.

The Company has not designated the investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
- On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages together;
   and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
- It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI to are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

- Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition;
- Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called 'accounting mismatch') that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

The equity securities, the corporate debt securities, RA government bonds denominated in USD and investments in fund units are classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'net trading gain' line item.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

### 3. Accounting policies (continued)

### (c) Financial Instruments (continued)

#### Specifically:

- For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in 'Net gain/(loss) from foreign currency revaluation ' line item;
- For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the 'net gain/(loss) from FVTPL' line item. Other exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in the investments revaluation reserve:
- For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the "Net gain/(loss) from foreign currency revaluation' line item; and
- For equity instruments measured at FVTPL, exchange differences are recognised in 'net trading gain' line item.

#### Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through PL:

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI that are debt instruments;
- Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets measured at amortised cost.

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12-month ECL for debt investment securities and cash and cash equivalents as these balances have been determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognized are referred to as 'Stage 1' financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognized are referred to as 'Stage 2' financial instruments. Financial instruments allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired.

Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognized and that are credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 3 financial instruments'.

The Company does not have financial assets classified at Stage 2 or Stage 3.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. For Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date they are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. The difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

For other financial assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

- Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;
- Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve.

### 3. Accounting policies (continued)

### (c) Financial Instruments (continued)

Write-off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

The Company's financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost include amounts payable under repurchase agreements, amounts due to financial institutions and individuals, liabilities for unsettled transactions, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.

The Company has determined that liabilities for unsettled transactions represent financial liabilities as the Company has contractual obligation to deliver securities (financial assets) to the counterparties in exchange for the received advances.

Interest expense on the financial liabilities is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method for financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost and is included in the 'interest expense' line item.

### (d) Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

There is no other contractual arrangements stating that both the Company and other shareholder of Invest in AM CJSC have interests in its assets, they are not liable for its liabilities in a specific proportion and there is no additional agreement to specifically segregate operational and strategic management. The analysis performed confirms that Invest in AM CJSC is a joint venture between the Company and other shareholder (Note 14).

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

#### (e) Transactions with securities and related investment income

Transactions with securities under dealing activity are accounted for on settlement date (date securities are purchased or sold). Interest income is recorded on an accrual basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. The securities that represent unit holdings in investment funds are transacted at net asset value per unit as published or reported by the respective funds.

In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange differences, and where applicable includes interest and dividend income, which is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established.

The gain or loss from units held in funds reflects the changes in net asset values per units held.

Transactions with securities under brokerage activities are not recorded on the statement of financial position of the Company as the risks and rewards of the ownership are borne by the brokerage customers.

### 3. Accounting policies (continued)

### (f) Fee and commission income and expense

The Company earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers, such as provision of brokerage and depositary services, securities account opening and maintenance, securities registration and maintenance services and other similar services.

The brokerage service commissions and depositary fees are accrued at a point in time at the moment the respective transaction is performed on behalf of the clients by applying contractually agreed fee rates to the total transaction values and issuing settlement instructions or orders.

Securities account maintenance, securities registration and maintenance services are accrued over one or three months.

All the amounts receivables are usually repaid within a month following the delivery of the respective service.

The Company's fee and commission expense mainly include agent fees and depositary fees. Agent fees are calculated based on marginal income earned by the Company from the services provided to clients introduced by agents. Consequently, acceptance acts are concluded between the Company and agents and agent fees are generally recognised quarterly. Commission expenses related to depositary services depend on the volume of transactions recorded, expenses usually are accrued on a monthly based as the services are received.

### (g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent current accounts with banks and clearing systems and cash on hand.

#### (h) Operating taxes

The RA has various other taxes, which may be assessed on the Company's activities. These taxes are included as a component of operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

#### (i) Property, equipment and intangible assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets, which are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortization is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property, equipment and intangible assets are as follows.

Leasehold improvements20 yearsCommunication devices and computers1-5 yearsMotor vehicles8 yearsOther1-8 yearsIntangible assets3 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term or renew the lease term.

### (j) New and amended standards and interpretations

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their 'material' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

### 3. Accounting policies (continued)

### (j) New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statements.

*IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* - amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2023, but do not have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction – Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The company has amended the Income tax disclosure for 2023 and 2022 years to present deferred taxes on right-of use assets and lease liabilities on a gross basis (Note 10).

International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules – Amendments to IAS 12 – the Company is not subject to Plllar Two taxes hence the amendments do not have impact on the Company's financial statements.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8 – the amendments do not have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

### (k) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. The amendments are not expected to have a material effect on the Company's financial statements:

- Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback;
- Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current;
- Supplier Finance Arrangements Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7.

### 4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

#### **Judgements**

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

#### Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

#### Fair value measurements

Judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year relate to accounting for financial instruments, particularly fair value measurements. The best evidence of fair value are the price quotations in an active market. In the absence of quoted prices in an active market, the management uses other evaluation techniques, such as the comparative approach with similar instruments both in the internal and external markets, and the actual prices of sales transactions occurred close to the reporting date. See *Notes* 12, 13, 24.

### 5. Net Interest Income

	2023	2022
Interest income:		
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	1,974,126	1,238,842
Interest income from bank accounts and deposits	27,193	15,301
Reverse repurchase agreements	4,784	908
Other assets	335	3,337
Total interest income	2,006,438	1,258,388
Interest expense:		
Repurchase agreements	(1,668,347)	(1,124,359)
Amounts due to financial institutions	(61,134)	(12,580)
Borrowings from individuals	(57,522)	-
Interest expense on lease liabilities	(20,405)	(22,075)
Other		(324)
Total interest expense	(1,807,408)	(1,159,338)
Net interest income	199,030	99,050

### 6. Fee and Commission Income and Expense

	2023	2022
Fee and commission income:		
Brokerage services	9,129,536	2,870,057
Depositary services	2,695,269	751,872
Securities account opening and maintenance	594,748	124,041
Maintenance of securities registry	96,955	81,684
Securities registration	47,705	96,727
Securities placement and pricing	35,271	19,529
Other commission income	3,500	15,598
Total fee and commission income	12,602,984	3,959,508
Fee and commission expense:		
Agent fees	(860,998)	(817,764)
Services provided by the depositaries	(822,366)	(171,881)
Stock exchange commission	(2,129)	(2,231)
Other commission expense	(361)	(402)
Total fee and commission expense	(1,685,854)	(992,278)
Net fee and commission income	10,917,130	2,967,230

Included in commission income are AMD 1,745,851 thousand received from the funds under management of the Company's associate Glocal CJSC (2022: AMD 555,414 thousand).

### 7. Net Trading Gain

	2023	2022
Net gain from trading and revaluation of securities issued in international		
markets	6,117,911	9,038,462
Net gain from trading of securities issued in local markets	460,712	194,090
Net gain (loss) from foreign currency purchase or sales transactions	300,089	(1,594,537)
Net gain (loss) on derivative financial instruments	46	(39,403)
	6,878,758	7,598,612

Included in net gain from foreign currency revaluation are gains of AMD 509,018 thousand from foreign exchange revaluation of debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (2022: AMD 128,451 thousand loss).

### 8. Staff Costs

Included in staff costs are bonus compensation of AMD 9,303,608 thousand (2022: 6,851,012 thousand) paid to employees for the market expansion activities and development of new business segment.

### 9. Administrative Expenses

<u>-</u>	2023	2022
Professional services	156,225	54,008
Taxes other than income tax	87,069	35,888
Depreciation	69,205	45,779
Maintenance of premises, equipment and intangible assets	51,144	25,878
Subscriptions	47,515	13,085
Travel and trainings	29,237	8,920
Representative expenses	25,098	14,909
Office utility expense	13,205	5,208
Advertising expenses	3,816	3,254
Other	20,891	4,223
Total administrative expenses	503,405	211,152

Fees paid to the auditor for the audit of Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to AMD 19,800 thousand (2022: AMD 12,000 thousand). No non-audit services were provided by the Company's external auditor in 2023.

### 10. Income tax

The Company's applicable tax rate is the income tax rate of 18% (2022: 18%). The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are:

	2023	2022
Current tax	1,177,583	454,995
Deferred tax	(33,679)	(35,701)
Total	1,143,904	419,294
IOtal		

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

	2023		2022	
	'000 AMD	%	'000 AMD	%
Profit before income tax	7,139,797		2,956,531	
Income tax at applicable tax rate	1,285,163	18.0%	532,176	18.0%
Correction of prior period current tax	(25,198)	(0.4%)	-	_
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses	(110,146)	(1.5%)	(99,359)	(3.4%)
Other (non-taxable)/non-deductible items	(5,915)	(0.1%)	(13,523)	(0.5%)
	1,143,904	16.0%	419,294	14.2%

The movement of deferred income taxes is disclosed below:

	2023	2022
Balance at the beginning of year	51,029	(2,965)
Charged to profit or loss	33,679	35,701
Charged in other comprehensive income	(93,120)	18,293
Balance at the end of year	(8,412)	51,029

### 10. Income tax (continued)

### Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

		Recognized in		
	1 January 2023	other comprehensive income	Recognized in profit or loss	31 December 2023
Trade and other payables	35,839	_	38,455	74,294
Lease liabilities	26,235	_	(2,447)	23,788
Reverse repurchase agreements	48	-	(48)	· –
Other assets	848	_	19,840	20,688
Cash and cash equivalents	757	-	(314)	443
Right of use assets	(29,218)	-	3,652	(25,566)
Investment securities	16,520	(93,120)	(25,459)	(102,059)
Tax assets/(liabilities)	51,029	(93,120)	33,679	(8,412)
	1 January 2022	Recognized in other comprehensive income	Recognized in profit or loss	31 December 2022
Trade and other payables	-	other comprehensive	-	
Trade and other payables Lease liabilities	<b>2022</b> 3,494	other comprehensive	profit or loss 32,345	2022
Lease liabilities	2022	other comprehensive	profit or loss	<b>2022</b> 35,839
• •	<b>2022</b> 3,494	other comprehensive	32,345 (2,147)	35,839 26,235
Lease liabilities Reverse repurchase agreements	3,494 28,382	other comprehensive	32,345 (2,147) 48	35,839 26,235 48
Lease liabilities Reverse repurchase agreements Other assets	3,494 28,382 (90)	other comprehensive	32,345 (2,147) 48 938	35,839 26,235 48 848
Lease liabilities Reverse repurchase agreements Other assets Cash and cash equivalents	3,494 28,382 - (90) (108)	other comprehensive	32,345 (2,147) 48 938 865	2022 35,839 26,235 48 848 757

### 11. Cash and Cash equivalents

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Current accounts with banks	1,034,950	2,978,327
Current accounts with clearing systems	5,536,728	1,631,936
Cash on hand		735
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows	6,571,678	4,610,998
Less: allowance for impairment losses	(2,459)	(4,204)
Total cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial positions	6,569,219	4,606,794

As at 31 December 2023 the Company has amounts placed in one clearing system (as at 31 December 2022: three banks and clearing systems) the balances of which exceeded 10% of Company's equity. The gross value of these balances as at 31 December 2023 is AMD 4,642,918 thousand (31 December 2022: AMD 3,728,924 thousand).

Cash and cash equivalents by geographical exposure is presented below:

	2023	2022
Armenia	1,513,623	2,948,588
Russia and Belarus	12,112	26,269
Other countries	5,043,484	1,631,937
	6,569,219	4,606,794

### 11. Cash and Cash equivalents (continued)

None of the balances are past due or impaired.. A reconciliation of the impairment loss allowance is as follows:

	2023		2022	
<u>-</u>	Stage 1	Total	Stage 1	Total
Impairment loss allowance at January 1	4,204	4,204	601	601
Charge for the year	(1,745)	(1,745)	3,603	3,603
Impairment loss allowance at 31 December	2,459	2,459	4,204	4,204

### 12. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

			31 December	31 December
	Coupon rate	Maturity	2023	2022
Held by the Company				
Corporate debt instruments with fixed				
maturity	2.2-8	2024-2027	732,995	956,328
Corporate debt instruments with no maturity	N/A	N/A	_	48,173
Corporate equity instruments	N/A	N/A	4,272,100	514,552
Investments in fund units under management				
of Company's associate Glocal CJSC	N/A	N/A	463,042	344,411
Government securities - other countries	5.63	2024-2042	1,080,921	110,888
Government securities of Armenia	N/A	N/A		82,807
Total held by the Company			6,549,058	2,057,159
Pledged under repurchase agreements				
Government securities of Armenia	4	2029	1,504,482	526,790
Corporate debt instruments			-	36,212
Total pledged under repurchase agreements			1,504,482	563,002
Pledged under borrowings from financial				·
institutions				
Government securities of Armenia	3.6-4	2029-2031	1,903,586	881,249
Corporate debt instruments	N/A	N/A	-	51,537
Total pledged under borrowings from				
financial institutions			1,903,586	932,786
Total financial assets FVTPL			9,957,126	3,552,947

Investments in fund units represent unit holdings in funds under the Company's associate's investment management. These units are carried at Company's share of the net asset value of the funds as at reporting date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by countries of the issuer comprise:

	2023	2022
Armenia	4,122,781	2,202,757
Russia and Belarus	2,170,684	640,752
Other countries	3,663,661	709,438
Trading securities	9,957,126	3,552,947

Securities issued by companies or governments of foreign countries are actively traded in the international markets. Pledged assets are discussed in notes 19 and 20. Fair value measurements are presented in note 24.

### 13. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Held by the Company		
Government securities of Armenia	2,802,376	1,502
Total held by the Company	2,802,376	1,502
Pledged under repurchase agreements		
Government securities of Armenia	23,882,741	8,157,158
Total pledged under repurchase agreements	23,882,741	8,157,158
Pledged under borrowings from financial institutions		
Government securities of Armenia	514,833	_
Total pledged under borrowings from financial institutions	514,833	_
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	27,199,950	8,158,660

Government debt securities represent securities issued by the Ministry of Finance of Armenia bearing fixed coupon interest rates between 3.6% to 13% p.a. (2022: 6.5% to 13% p.a.) and expiring between 2025-2052 (2022: 2023 to 2036). The fair value of these instruments is measured using valuation techniques applying current market rates to discounted future cash flows or quoted prices.

The movement of allowance for impairment losses for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

	2023	2022
	Stage 1	Stage 1
At 1 January	16,872	31,366
Net charge/(recovery) of provision for impairment	40,725	(14,494)
At 31 December	57,597	16,872

Fair value measurements are presented in Note 24.

### 14. Investment in Associates and Joint ventures

#### **Investments in Associates**

	Principal activity	Place of incorporation and principal place of business	Proportion of ownership inte and voting rights held by the Company as at 31 Decemb	
	_		2023	2022
Glocal CJSC	Fund Manager	Yerevan, Armenia	33%	33%

In 2018 the Company made an investment in newly incorporated Glocal CJSC, whose primary operations comprise of non-public fund management services.

Summarised financial information in respect of this investment is set out below, prepared from the associate's IFRS financial statements:

"Glocal" CJSC	2023	2022
Balance at the beginning of the period Company's share of the associate's profit for the year	144,288 66,329	139,559 4,729
Total	210,617	144,288
"Glocal" CJSC	2023	2022
Revenue Profit and other comprehensive income for the year	127,823 195,249	107,376 18,423
Total assets	653,306	452,577
Total liabilities	20,822	15,341
Equity	632,485	437,236

### 14. Investment in Associates and Joint ventures (continued)

#### **Investments in Joint Ventures**

Details of the Company's joint venture at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

	Place of incorporation		Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights held by the Company	
Name of joint venture	Principal activity	principal place of business	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Invest in AM CJSC	Consulting firm	Yerevan, Armenia	50%	50%
Invest in AM CJSC			31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Balance at the beginning of the period Company's share of the joint venture's k	oss for the year		22,833 (6,474)	22,833
Total			16,359	22,833

Summarised financial information in respect of this investment is set out below, prepared from the joint venture's IFRS financial statements.

Invest in AM CJSC	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Loss and other comprehensive loss for the year	(6,376)	(6,572)
Total assets	32,975	39,320
Total liabilities	257	226
Equity	32,718	39,094

On 17 August, 2020 Armbrok OJSC and Hovsep Patvakanian have established a legal entity with the name Invest in AM registered at 39, Hanrapetutyun street, Armenia. The authorized capital of Invest in AM is defined AMD 48,000 thousand, which is divided into 10,000 shares, each with a nominal value of AMD 4,800. Invest in AM is a private consulting company which helps investors with offers and Armenian exporting companies with potential buyers. Invest in AM is principally engaged in developing a platform for startup projects. The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements as set out in the Company's accounting policies in Note 3.

### 15. Property, Equipment and Intangible Assets

				Office			
		Communi-		equipment,	Total		
	Leasehold	cation		fixtures,	property		
	improve-	devices and	Motor	fittings and	and	Intangible	
-	ments	computers	vehicles	other	equipment	assets	Total
Cost							_
At 1 January 2022	118,011	8,449	49,927	74,946	251,333	6,367	257,700
Additions	_	1,900	_	22,362	24,262	_	24,262
Reclassification	(1,714)			1,714			
At 31 December 2022	116,297	10,349	49,927	99,022	275,595	6,367	281,962
Additions	-	32,023	_	27,561	59,584	29,333	88,917
Disposals						(6,367)	(6,367)
At 31 December, 2023	116,297	42,372	49,927	126,583	335,179	29,333	364,512
					_		
2,419,071					-		
199,107	508	7,869	30,186	6,520	45,083	6,367	51,450
176,824	5,828	297	5,836	13,528	25,489		25,489
2,795,002	6,336	8,166	36,022	20,048	70,572	6,367	76,939
	5,813	27,437	5,837	5,951	45,038	3,877	48,915
63,706						(6,367)	(6,367)
736,040	12,149	35,603	41,859	25,999	115,610	3,877	119,487
2,037				·			
801,783					_		
3,596,785	117,503	580	19,741	68,426	206,250		206,250
At 31 December, 2022	109,961	2,183	13,905	78,974	205,023		205,023
At 31 December, 2023	104,148	6,769	8,068	100,584	219,569	25,456	245,025

At 31 December 2023 property and equipment included fully depreciated assets with original cost of AMD 29,383 thousand (31 December 2022: AMD 13,224 thousand).

### 16. Leases

The Company leases office premises. The agreement term is 10 years and is non-cancellable for that period. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office premises the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease.

# 16. Leases (continued)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

	Buildings	Leasehold improvements (in progress)	Total
Cost		7 7	
Balance at 1 January, 2022 Transfer	210,510 -	<b>8,546</b> (8,546)	219,056 (8,546)
.,	210,510	(0,040)	210,510
Balance at 31 December, 2022 Additions		- <del></del> -	
Balance at 31 December, 2023	210,510		210,510
Accumulated depreciation			
Balance at 1 January, 2022	27,899	-	27,899
Depreciation expense	20,290		20,290
Balance at 31 December, 2022	48,189	<u> </u>	48,189
Depreciation expense	20,290	· <del></del> -	20,290
Balance at 31 December, 2022	68,479	· <del></del> -	68,479
Carrying amount	400.044	0.540	404.457
1 January 2022	182,611	8,546	191,157
31 December 2022	162,321	· <del></del> -	162,321
31 December 2023	142,031	- <del>-</del> -	142,031
Impact on profit or loss		2023	2022
Impact on profit/(loss) for the year			
Increase in depreciation of right-of-use asset		20,290	20,290
Increase in finance costs (Note 5)		20,405	22,075
Decrease in profit for the year		40,695	42,365
Lease liabilities			
Maturity analysis:		2023	2022
Year 1		34,000	34,000
Year 2		34,000	34,000
Year 3		34,000	34,000
Year 4		34,000	34,000
Year 5		34,000	34,000
Year 6 and beyond		34,000	68,000
Lancourage of interest		204,000 (71.845)	(92.250)
Less: unearned interest		(71,845)	(92,250)
Audio de		132,155	145,750
Analysed as:		440 744	400 455
Non-current Current		116,711 15,444	132,155 13,595
Current			
		132,155	145,750

### 16. Leases (continued)

### Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. Interest expense paid was classified as operating activity in the statement of cash flows.

	_1 January 2023	Recognized during the year	Net proceeds /repayments - cash flows	Interest expense	31 December 2023
Lease liabilities	145,750	-	(34,000)	20,405	132,155
	145,750	_	(34,000)	20,405	132,155
	1 January 2022	Recognized during the year	Net proceeds /repayments - cash flows	Interest expense	31 December 2022
Lease liabilities	157,675	_	(34,000)	22,075	145,750
	157,675		(34,000)	22,075	145,750

### 17. Other Assets

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Other financial assets	•	
Loans to employees	1,008	2,128
Receivables on services provided	483,646	232,413
Receivables on transactions with securities	118,199	262,724
Receivables from banks and clearing systems	115,632	_
Less: allowance for impairment loss	(114,930)	(4,710)
	603,555	492,555
Other non-financial assets		
Prepayment for property, equipment and intangible assets	67,385	_
Other	17,668	7,412
	85,053	7,412
Total other assets	688,608	499,967

Included in other assets are AMD 21,059 thousand receivable from the funds under management of the Company's associate Glocal CJSC.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's other financial assets:

As at 31 December 2023	Non overdue	Past due less than 3 months	3-6 months	More than 6 months	Total
Gross carrying amount Expected credit loss Net carrying amount	505,790	44,032	89,045	79,618	718,485
	(11,594)	(6,748)	(23,495)	(73,093)	(114,930)
	<b>494,196</b>	<b>37,284</b>	<b>65,550</b>	<b>6,525</b>	<b>603,555</b>
As at 31 December 2022	Non overdue	Past due less than 3 months	3-6 months	More than 6 months	Total
Gross carrying amount Expected credit loss Net carrying amount	418,175	37,622	14,612	26,856	497,265
	(3,961)	(356)	(138)	(255)	(4,710)
	<b>414,214</b>	<b>37,266</b>	<b>14,474</b>	<b>26,601</b>	<b>492,555</b>

### 17. Other Assets (continued)

Allowance for impairment losses is recognised based on simplified method. A reconciliation of the impairment loss allowance in accordance with IFRS 9 is as follows:

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Beginning of year	4,710	7,718
Net charge for the year	124,210	(3,008)
Net write-offs	(13,990)	
Closing balance at the end of the year	114,930	4,710

### 18. Equity

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022 the Company's registered and paid-in share capital was AMD 267,150 thousand represented by 267,150 ordinary shares of AMD 1,000 each. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared and are entitled to one vote per share. The share capital of the Company was contributed by the participants in Armenian Drams and they are entitled to dividends and any capital distribution in Armenian Drams. In 2023 AMD 267,150 thousand dividends were declared and paid, dividends per share comprised AMD 1000 (2022: AMD 106,860 thousand and dividend per share – AMD 400).

The respective shareholders at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were as follows:

	31 Decer	nber 2023	31 Decer	mber 2022
	Paid-in share capital	% of total paid in capital	Paid-in share capital	% of total paid in capital
Aram Kayfajyan	113,058	42.32%	115,943	43.39%
GERMAN CAUCASIAN TRADING LTD	65,292	24.44%	72,934	27.30%
Ashot Chagharyan	24,328	9.11%	27,000	10.11%
Other shareholders	64,472	24.13%	51,273	19.20%
	267,150	100.00%	267,150	100.00%

The Company's distributable reserves among participants are limited to the amount of its accumulated retained earnings as disclosed in its statutory accounts in accordance with the legislation of the RA. Non-distributable reserves are represented by statutory general reserve, which is created as required by the statutory regulations, in respect of general risks, including future losses and other unforeseen risks or contingencies. The reserve has been created in accordance with the Charter of the Company and its subsidiary that provide for the creation of a reserve for these purposes a minimum of 15% of Share capital.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of investment securities measured at fair value through OCI, until the assets are derecognised through transfer to profit or loss.

### 19. Amounts payable under repurchase agreements

The Company has transactions under repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The securities lent or sold under repurchase agreements are transferred to a third party in exchange for cash received by the Company. These financial assets may be re-pledged or resold by counterparties in the absence of default, but the counterparty has an obligation to return the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Company has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them. These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending, and securities borrowing and lending activities, as well as requirements determined by exchanges where the Company acts as intermediary.

### 19. Amounts payable under repurchase agreements (continued)

#### Repurchase agreements

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Fair value of own financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income transferred and pledged under repurchase		_
agreements (Note 13)	23,882,741	8,157,158
Fair value of own financial assets at fair value through profit or loss		
transferred and pledged under repurchase agreements (Note 12)	1,504,482	563,002
Total financial assets transferred and pledged under repurchase		
agreements	25,387,223	8,720,160
Amounts payable to Armenian banks under repurchase agreements	23,854,597	8,309,880

### 20. Amounts Due to Financial Institutions and Individuals

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Loans and overdrafts from Armenian bank	2,273,797	887,418
Short-term borrowings from individual	858,548	-
Total amounts due to financial institutions	3,132,345	887,418

Amounts due to financial institutions bear fixed interest rate 2.5% and maturity from December 2023 to January 2024 (31 December 2022: 02.75 % to 4.9 % and mature from January 2023 to September 2023). These liabilities are denominated in US dollars (31 December 2022: Armenian drams and US dollars). The overdraft facilities as per signed agreements are available through to 2024.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI pledged against amounts due to financial institutions, represented by government and corporate bonds, at 31 December 2023 amounted to AMD 2,418,419 thousand (31 December 2022: AMD 932,786 thousand) (Note 12,13).

Amounts due to individuals represent short-term borrowing which bear fixed interest rate from 3% to 3.5%. and maturity of February 2024 (31 December 2022: nil). These liabilities are denominated in US dollars. Amounts due to individual are not secured.

### 21. Liabilities for unsettled transactions

In the course of its business, the Company receives advances from customers for the purpose of acquiring securities with view of their subsequent transfer to customers. Liabilities for unsettled transactions represent consideration received from customers for unsettled security acquisitions as of the end of the reporting period. All the balances have been properly settled after the end of the reporting period.

### 22. Trade and Other Payables

	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Other financial liabilities:		
Salary payable	1,357,991	2,419,071
Unused vacation accrual	251,875	199,107
Accounts payable	245,558	176,824
	1,855,424	2,795,002
Other non-financial liabilities:		
Prepayments received from customers	56,380	63,706
Tax payable, other than income tax	353,497	736,040
Other		2,037
	409,877	801,783
Total trade and other payable	2,265,301	3,596,785

Revenue recognized in 2023 from prepayments received from customers outstanding as at 31 December 2022 amounted AMD 22,119 thousand.

### 23. Risk management

#### Introduction

Management of risk is fundamental to the business of the Company and forms an essential element of the Company's operations. The major (significant) risks faced by the Company are those related to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and operational, legal and reputational risks.

#### a) Risk management policies and procedures

The risk management policies aim to identify, analyses and manage the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously monitor risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.

The shareholders have overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework, overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk management policies and procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures.

The management of the Company is responsible for monitoring and implementing risk mitigation measures, and ensuring that the Company operates within established risk parameters.

The Executive Director is responsible for the overall risk management and compliance functions, ensuring the implementation of common principles and methods for identifying, measuring, managing and reporting both financial and non-financial risks. He reports directly to the shareholders.

Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the company. Particular attention is given to identifying the full range of risk factors and determining the level of assurance over current risk mitigation procedures.

#### b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company has policies and procedures in place to manage credit exposures (both for recognised financial assets and unrecognised contractual commitments).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the statement of financial position. The impact of the possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets below is managed by the Company based on external credit ratings. Not rated exposures are classified in Standard Grade unless they are impaired.

As at 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2022 all the financial assets except of other financial assets are classified at standard grade and included in Stage 1 for the purposes of expected credit loss calculation.

The table below shows the mapping of the Company's grading system and external ratings of the counterparties as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

31 December 2023:	Internal rating	
International external rating agency (Moody's) rating	description	PD
A to A2	l limb and de	0.0.000/
Aaa to A3	High grade	0-0.06%
Baa1 to B3	Standard	0.1-4.52%
Caa1 to C	Sub-standard grade	6.93-33.62.0%
D and below	Impaired	100%
31 December 2022:	Internal rating	
31 December 2022: International external rating agency (Moody's) rating	Internal rating description	PD
0. 2000	description	<i>PD</i>
International external rating agency (Moody's) rating	•	
International external rating agency (Moody's) rating  Aaa to A3 Baa1 to B3	description  High grade Standard	0-0.06% 0.1-4.3%
International external rating agency (Moody's) rating  Aaa to A3	description  High grade	0-0.06%

### 23. Risk management (continued)

### Introduction (continued)

The movement of expected credit loss allowance against financial assets is presented below:

	Financial assets at fair value through OCI	Cash and cash equivalents	Reverse repurchase agreements	Other financial assets	Total
At 31 December 2021	31,366	601		7,718	39,685
Net charge/(recovery) of loss allowance	(14,494)	3,603	267	(3,008)	(13,632)
At 31 December 2022 Net charge/(recovery) of loss	16,872	4,204	267	4,710	26,053
allowance	40,725	(1,745)	(267)	124,210	162,923
Write off				(13,990)	(13,990)
At 31 December 2023	57,597	2,459		114,930	174,986

#### Liquidity risk and companying management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to liquidity management. It is unusual for financial institutions ever to be completely matched, since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.

The Company maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be available at all times to honour all cash flow obligations as they become due. The liquidity management policy requires:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies and taking into account the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Managing the concentration and profile of debts;
- Maintaining debt financing plans;
- Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any interruption to cash flow;
- Maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans;

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

	31 December 2023						
	Demand and less than 1 month	From 1 to 3 months	From 3 to 12 months	From 1 to 5 years	More than 5 years	Total	
Financial liabilities Amounts payable under repurchase	23,899,874	-	-	•		23,899,874	
agreements Amounts due to financial institutions and individuals	3,136,914	-	-	-	-	3,136,914	
Liabilities for unsettled transactions	3,930,608	-	-	-	-	3,930,608	
Lease liabilities	2,833	5,667	25,500	136,000	34,000	204,000	
Trade and other payables	1,603,549		251,875			1,855,424	
Total undiscounted financial liabilities	32,573,778	5,667	277,375	136,000	34,000	33,026,820	

### 23. Risk management (continued)

### Liquidity risk and companying management (continued)

			31 Decem	nber 2022		
	Demand and					
	less than	From 1 to	From 3 to	From 1 to	More than	
	1 month	3 months	12 months	5 years	5 years	Total
Financial liabilities						
Amounts payable under repurchase						
agreements	8,322,629	-	-	-	-	8,322,629
Amounts due to financial institutions and						
individuals	888,742	_	_	_	_	888,742
Liabilities for unsettled						
transactions	400,466	_	_	_	_	400,466
Lease liabilities	2,833	5,667	25,500	136,000	68,000	238,000
Trade and other						
payables	2,419,072		375,930			2,795,002
Total undiscounted financial liabilities	12,033,742	5,667	401,430	136,000	68,000	12,644,839

### Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risks could be effective tools to manage the risks. Controls should include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.

#### Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risks. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate and equity financial instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market prices and foreign currency rates. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The Company manages its market risk by hedging the positions.

#### Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (calculation is based on durations of instruments) to a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through OCI as at 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2022:

	Sensitivity of net					
Currency	Increase in basis points 2023	interest income 2023	Sensitivity of equity 2023			
AMD	1.00%	_	(1,256,159)			
USD	1.00%	(234,692)	· · · · · · · · ·			

	Sensitivity of net						
Currency	Decrease in basis points 2023	interest income 2023	Sensitivity of equity 2023				
AMD	1.00%	_	1,256,159				
USD	1.00%	234,692					

### 23. Risk management (continued)

### Market risk (continued)

		Sensitivity of net					
Currency	Increase in basis points 2022	interest income 2022	Sensitivity of equity 2022				
AMD	3.18%	(558)	(752,087)				
USD	2.18%	(270,738)	· · · · · ·				

		Sensitivity of net					
Currency	Decrease in basis points 2022	interest income 2022	Sensitivity of equity 2022				
AMD	3.18%	558	752,087				
USD	2.18%	270,738					

#### Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at 31 December 2023 and 2022 on its monetary assets and liabilities. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Armenian Dram, with all other variables held constant on the statement of profit or loss. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the statement of profit or loss statement, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

AMD'000	Change in currency rate in % 2023	Effect on profit before tax 2023	Change in currency rate in % 2022	Effect on profit before tax 2022
Currency				
	10%	23,881	21.3%	64,393
EUR	-10%	(23,881)	-21.3%	(64,393)
	10%	142,724	12.6%	595,913
USD	-10%	(142,724)	-12.6%	(595,913)
	10%	17,732	18.6%	21,832
RUB	-10%	(17,732)	-18.6%	(21,832)

### 24. Fair value measurement

The Company provides an analysis of its assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. These Levels are described below:

- ► Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:
- ▶ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
- ▶ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

#### (a) Financial instruments that are not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements, other financial assets, amounts payable under repurchase agreements and amounts due to financial institutions and individuals are liquid or have a short term maturity (less than three months) therefore it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair values.

### 24. Fair value measurement (continued)

#### (a) Financial instruments that are not measured at fair value (continued)

Lease liabilities

The fair value of lease liabilities is close to its carrying value and is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques, applying the market interest rates that the Company would have to pay as of the reporting date to borrow over a similar term and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of use assets.

#### (b) Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

#### As of 31 December 2023

'000 AMD	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total fair values
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Financial assets at fair value through other	-	9,957,126	-	9,957,126
comprehensive income	_	27,199,950	_	27,199,950

#### As of 31 December 2022

'000 AMD	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total fair values
Financial assets at fair value through profit or				
loss		3,552,947	_	3,552,947
Financial assets at fair value through other				
comprehensive income	-	8,158,660	-	8,158,660

Armenian government securities are classified as level 2 as they have been valued using discounted cash flow techniques at a rate that reflects market yield of specific time to maturity. The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.

Corporate securities issued in Armenia and fund units held are classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy as they are measured at quoted price in a market that is not active.

The fair value of securities issued overseas is classified as level 2, which are based on quoted market prices in an international market, except certain securities mostly issued by Russian companies, which are reflected at subsequent sale price if such sale occurs close to the reporting date due to non-availability of quoted prices and which are classified under level 2 fair value hierarchy, as the sales of securities have taken place after the reporting date, the management considers that the fair value of these securities approximate the selling price.

### 25. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. See Note 23 Risk management for the Company's contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

	2023			2022		
	Within	More than		Within	More than	
_	one year	one year	Total	one year	one year	Total
Cash and cash equivalents	6,569,219	_	6,569,219	4,606,794	-	4,606,794
Term Deposits	_	_	_	6,189	_	6,189
Amounts receivable under						
reverse repurchase						
agreements	-	-	-	995,337	-	995,337
Financial assets at fair value	0.057.400		0.057.400	2.552.047		2.552.047
through profit or loss Financial assets at fair value	9,957,126	_	9,957,126	3,552,947	_	3,552,947
through OCI	27,199,950	_	27,199,950	8,158,660	_	8,158,660
Investment in associate	-	210,617	210,617	-	144,288	144,288
Investment in joint venture	_	16,359	16,359	_	22,833	22,833
Property, equipment and	_	-,	-,		,	,
intangible assets		245,025	245,025	_	205,023	205,023
Right of use assets	_	142,031	142,031	_	162,321	162,321
Deferred tax assets	-	_	-	_	51,029	51,029
Other assets	688,608		688,608	499,967		499,967
Total	44,414,903	614,032	45,028,935	17,819,894	585,494	18,405,388
Amounts payable under						
repurchase agreements	23,854,597	-	23,854,597	8,309,880	-	8,309,880
Amounts due to financial	0.400.045		0.400.045	007.440		007.440
institutions and individuals Liabilities for unsettled	3,132,345	_	3,132,345	887,418	_	887,418
transactions	3,930,608	_	3,930,608	400,466	_	400,466
Current income tax liabilities	914,914	_	914,914	471,717	_	471,717
Lease liabilities	15,444	116,711	132,155	13,595	132,155	145,750
Trade and other payables	2,265,301	, <u> </u>	2,265,301	3,596,785	, <u> </u>	3,596,785
Provisions	_	27,677	27,677	_	27,677	27,677
Deferred tax liabilities		8,412	8,412			
Total	34,113,209	152,800	34,266,009	13,679,861	159,832	13,839,693
Net	10,301,694	461,232	10,762,926	4,140,033	425,662	4,565,695

The Company management considers the financial assets at fair value through OCI and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as liquid assets which the Company is able to convert to cash hence the Company has presented these assets as maturing within one year.

### 26. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Central Bank of Armenia and net debt. Net debt is defined as sum of borrowings and lease liabilities after deducting cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Management seeks to maintain a sufficient capital base for meeting the Company's operational and strategic needs, and to maintain confidence of market participants. This is achieved with efficient cash management, constant monitoring of Company's revenues and profit, and long-term investment plans mainly financed by the Company's operating cash flows. With these measures the Company aims for steady profits growth. There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

The Central Bank of Armenia sets and monitors capital requirements for the Company. Under the current capital requirements set by the Central Bank of Armenia, the Company has to maintain a minimum total capital of AMD 300,000 thousand (2022: AMD 300,000 thousand). The Company is in compliance with minimum total capital requirements as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

### 27. Contingencies

#### (a) Insurance

The Armenian insurance industry is in its development stage and many forms of insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available in Armenia. The Company does not have full coverage for its business interruption, or third party liability in respect of property or environmental damage arising from accidents on the Company property or relating to the Company operations. Until the Company obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or destruction of certain assets or environmental damage could have a materially adverse effect on the Company's operations and financial position.

#### (b) Litigation

The Company does not have litigations that may have a material effect on the Company's results of operations or financial position.

#### (c) Taxation

The taxation system in Armenia is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes unclear, contradictory and subject to varying interpretation. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by tax authorities, which have the authority to impose fines and penalties. In the event of a breach of tax legislation, no liabilities for additional taxes, fines or penalties may be imposed by tax authorities once three years have elapsed from the date of the breach.

These circumstances may create tax risks in Armenia that are more significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable Armenian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

#### 28. Related parties

The Company's related parties include its shareholders, key management and the funds under the Company's associate's management.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the major shareholder of the Company is Aram Kayfajyan who is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Transactions with Aram Kayfajyan are presented under 'Key management personnel' category below.

#### Transactions with related parties

As of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Company had the following transactions with the related parties and outstanding balances.

	31 December 2023				
	Non-executive shareholders	Key management personnel	Other		
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income Income		•			
Fee and commission income Other income (sub-lease) Interest income	10,485 3,924	16,891 -	3,634 -		
<b>Expenses</b> Administrative and other expenses	-	4,593	-		
Statement of financial position Cash and cash equivalents Other assets Investments in fund units	1,758 -	380	413 -		

# 28. Related parties (continued)

### Transactions with related parties (continued)

	31 December 2022		
	Non-executive shareholders	Key management personnel	Other
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income Income			
Fee and commission income	3,212	255	_
Other income (sub-lease)	4,404	_	-
Interest income	-	2,349	_
Expenses			
Administrative and other expenses	-	13,701	_
Statement of financial position			
Cash and cash equivalents	-	_	38,933
Other assets	-	829	. –
Investments in fund units	_	_	_

Key management compensation for the year amounted to AMD 3,238,704 thousand (2021: AMD 2,034,344 thousand).